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ADDENDUM NUMBER 1 
 

PEOPLESOFT HRMS 9.1 FIT GAP ANALYSIS 
 

RFP11-1765-IS 
  

The above listed solicitation is hereby amended and clarified through issuance of this addendum. 

 
1. What is your anticipated start date?   

 The anticipated start date is November 15, 2010. 
 

2. What are the deliverables expected?   

Attend kick-off meeting with the project team 
Conduct meetings/interviews with functional leads to review current business 
process practices and business needs 
Provide all Fit/Gap notes to the project team 
Formal Fit/Gap analysis report including all items in scope of work such as:        

• Identify new functionality and setup requirements 
• Identify new functionality to replace current customizations and manual 

processes 
• Identify template functionality in HCM 9.1 that metro can utilize 
• Assess delivered integration processes and make recommendations for 

implementing 
 
Present recommendations to project team in a wrap-up presentation. 

 
3.  Will the Upgrade be a separate project? 

 
The upgrade will be a separate project. 
 

4. Section VI.A.: Submission of Sealed Proposals - (Informal, less than $100,000, may be 
emailed or faxed) 3 copies of the proposal shall be furnished to Metro in a sealed envelope…It 
is unclear to us whether 3 physical copies must be furnished to Metro or if this solicitation 
qualifies as “informal” and, thus, may be e-mailed instead. Is the determining factor for e-
mailing or submitting 3 physical copies the price (i.e.: <$100,000 can be e-mailed)?  

We anticipate this project to be under the informal limit and therefore we are 
accepting emailed or faxed proposals. 
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5. Is there a way to register as a proposer for this RFP in order to ensure we receive all future 
notices (Addendums, etc.)?  

 
Everything relevant to this RFP will be posted on Metro’s website.  Please refer to 
the following link:  http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=24894  
and the page titled:  RFP: PeopleSoft HRMS 9.1 Fit Gap Analysis Services. 

 

6. Section VII.B.: Approach/Project Work Plan: Describe how the work will be done within the 
given timeframe and budget…Could Metro provide additional information regarding their 
expected timeframe and budget for this project? 

 
The timeframe is the following:  Consultant selected by November 5, 2010.  Work 
scheduled to begin onsite November 15, 2010.  Fit Gap finished by December 17, 
2010.  Metro is seeking competitive bids under $25,000.   
 

 
7. We would like to suggest certain mutually-beneficial clauses for inclusion into the Standard 

Agreement. Should we do so in our proposal? Or will Metro be open to negotiating these terms 
as part of a final agreement? 

 
Exceptions and comments should be submitted as part of the proposal.  

 
8. Will the Cover Page and Table of Contents of our proposal count towards the 20-page limit? In 

other words, can we include 20 pages of written content plus two additional pages containing 
the Cover Page and Table of Contents? 

 
The Cover Page and Table of Contents do not count towards the 20-page limit. 

 
9. The RFP mentions that “biographies and brochures” may be included as an Appendix. We 

wanted to confirm that “biographies” is synonymous with Resumes. Section “C. Staffing/Project 
Manager Designation” seems to request that resumes be included within that section of our 
proposal (and within the 20-page limit). Please clarify? 

 
Staffing should be identified in Section C with the resumes attached in the 
Appendix as appropriate.   

 

http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=24894�
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10. How many employees are on payroll and what frequency are the employees being paid. I.E 
weekly, biweekly, semi monthly etc. 

6 month average is 1455 per pay period; paid semi monthly 

 

11. In HR how many companies, departments, Business Units, locations, job codes, positions, 
salary plans, benefit programs and paygroups are you using in PeopleSoft 8.9 ? 

Metro’s configuration includes the following:  2 Companies, 286 Departments, 
One Business Unit, 30 Locations, 640 jobcodes, 1005 positions, 34 salary plans, 1 
benefit program & 4 paygroups. 

 
12. How many applicants are being entered into Applicant Tracking System NeoGov each month? 

Our go live on this application was October 1, 2010.  We had less than a dozen 
applicants the first month.   
 

13. How many new hires are being entered into the system each month? 

We have many positions that are seasonal.  However, looking at a six month 
average we have an average of 22 new hires per month. 

14. How many multiple jobs are being managed in PeopleSoft and how many employees can work 
in different departments each paycycle? 

 
 We have employees with as many as 10 secondary jobs.  We have approximately 
840 employees with multiple jobs.  I don’t know how many employees can work in 
multiple departments per pay period but we have many who do.  We also have 
many employees who allocate to multiple departments. 

15.  How many manual checks are being cut after each pay cycle? 

We’ve only cut one manual check in the last 3 years; our average number of off 
cycle checks in the last 6 months is 15. 
 

16.  Are there any significant HR and Financial business requirements that your current 8.9 system 
does not handle that you would like accommodated in the new 9.1 upgraded version? 

Interface to AP to eliminate manual preparation of payments from payroll 
deductions;  Would like to implement use of delivered Payroll to GL interface; 
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Advice sort based on specification in Pay Group setup; Employee benefit 
deductions setup in Base Benefits instead of General Deductions;  Would like to 
take advantage of Retro Pay functionality (would probably implement post go 
live). 

 
17. Are any workflows being used in the HR system? 

Metro does use workflows such as:  Pay rate changes, Hire, Termination, 
notification of Leave, Benefits changes. 

18. How is payroll information being passed to the PeopleSoft Financials GL Module? Are you 
using the delivered vanilla Payroll to GL interface or has it been customized? 

Metro is using a 100% customized interface to the Finance GL.  One of our goals 
in the HCM 9.1 upgrade is to explore using the delivered Payroll to GL Interface.   

19. Do you have access to the 9.1 demo version or do you need to utilize our 9.1 PeopleSoft 
version in our Lab? 

Metro has a 9.1 demo database up and running for users to view.   

20. How many developer resources are you planning to put on the fit gap project? 

The technical team is comprised of five people:  1 – security admin; 3 - system 
administrators; 1 – DBA.  

21. Do you have a project manager assigned to this fit gap? 

Amy Padilla, Project Manager; 503-797-1859 | 503-797-1791 fax; 
amy.padilla@oregonmetro.gov 

 
22. How many of your technical resources have been through a PeopleSoft upgrade before? 

Four out of the five have been through a PeopleSoft upgrade. 

23. How many of your functional resources have been through a PeopleSoft upgrade before? 

Two of the functional leads have been through multiple PeopleSoft upgrades. 

24. What is your level of online customizations; how many objects by type have been modified. I.E 
PeopleCode, Components, Application Engine, Records, Menus, Pages, Fields, etc 

Metro’s level of online customizations is minimal. Metro’s philosophy is to not 
customize delivered objects.  However, we have created custom objects to 
accommodate our needs.  We currently have 36 custom records, 41 custom 

mailto:amy.padilla@oregonmetro.gov�
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pages, 8 customized menus, 15 – 25 PeopleCode changes, 15-20 custom fields, 8 
customized Application Engines.   

25. Can you please email us a recent copy of your DDAUDIT and SYSAUDIT reports? 

A copy of the DDDAUDIT & SYSAUDIT will be posted on the website with the RFP 
and addendum.  

 
26. Do you have documentation for your current customizations? 

Metro has documentation on customizations by type.  

27. Does the documentation explain the business reason justifying the customizations? 

The documentation does explain the business reason for customizations. 

28. How many custom SQR reports and interfaces are currently running in production? Please list 
them as High, Medium, Low complexity. 

We have 60 custom or customized SQR reports and interfaces.  21 have low 
complexity; 15 have medium complexity; 24 have high complexity. 

29. Have any COBOL programs been modified prior to this upgrade starting? 

No COBOL programs have been modified. 

30. How many custom Crystal / Query reports have been created and how complex are they? 

We have very complex queries and crystal reports in our HR department that 
have been written by the HR functional lead and are maintained by the functional 
lead.  There are between 40-50 complex Crystal reports and over 100 complex 
queries. However, users do have their own private directories to save their 
custom reports with sensitive material. 

31. What is the current Update & Fix strategy (i.e., evaluate all published patches; only look for 
patches if something breaks) 

We only look for patches when something breaks, but do apply all Tax Updates in 
a timely manner.  

32. Have you applied all, most, some or none of the PeopleSoft fixes and patches to the 
production database? 
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We have applied Tax Updates up to 10-D and have applied 6 Required for 
Upgrade Bundles.  

33. Is there a budget range set aside for this project?  What is the “informal $100,000” include? 

Informal dictates the type of process Metro must follow such as advertising, pre-
proposal meetings, and other criteria dictated by contract rules.  See answer to 
question six regarding budget. 

34. How is the proposal to be sent? emailed, faxed or 3 copies mailed? “(Informal, 
less than $100,000, may be emailed or faxed) 3 copies of the proposal shall 
be furnished to Metro in a sealed envelope” 
 

See answer to question four.  
 

35. Is there a desired duration/timeline for the assessment to be completed within? 
 

See answer to question six. 
 

36. Is there a firm start date for the assessment to begin? 
 

See answer to question one. 
 

37. Does Metro currently have a 9.1 DEMO system installed? 
 

See answer to question sixteen. 
 

38. Are the existing customizations well documented in an electronic format? If no, does the 
material exist in a hard copy format? 
 

Customizations are documented, but not in electronic form.  They are available 
for review. 

 
39. Approximately what portion of the Functional and Technical staff’s time will be dedicated to 

providing input on current processes and customizations? 
 

Any time needed will be provided. 
 

40. How many functional SMEs and Technical SMEs will be available to assist in the system 
assessment process? 

 
There will be three functional SME’s and five technical SME’s available.   
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41. Will providing the assessment services exclude the winning proposer from potentially 
participating in upgrade services in a future phase? 

 
No the winning proposer will not be excluded from future phases. 

 
42. Is Metro already familiar with some of the perceived advantages in 9.1, or will this be an initial 

introduction for the key SMEs? 
  

Metro has a 9.1 Demo database up and running for review and the 
SME’s have reviewed the Release notes.   

 
43.  Business processes - Does Metro have all the current business processes documented?  If 

yes, will those be made available to the vendor? 
 

Metro does not have all the current business processes documented.   
 

44. Deliverables - In addition to the functional analysis and design recommendations, does Metro 
expect a high-level project plan for the upgrade to be a deliverable from this engagement? If 
so, what components would be included in that plan (e.g.: budget, staffing, tasks, timeline, 
etc.)? 
 

No, Metro does not expect a high-level project plan for the upgrade to be 
delivered from this engagement.  

 
45. Customizations & Interfaces -  

i. Does Metro have all the current customizations (both functional and technical) 
documented?  If yes, will those be made available to the vendor? 

 
See answer to question thirty eight.   
 

ii. Please provide a list of all customizations and the area they are in.   
 
See answer to question twenty-four.   
 

iii. Please provide a list of all interfaces and reports (Number, purpose, target 
system, frequency) 
 

Metro has custom interfaces to and from Kronos Workforce that runs multiple 
times a day; Interface to a grant management system that runs nightly; Interface 
to the GL from payroll that runs twice a month; Interface that runs to a learning 
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management system daily; Interface to PERS that runs twice a month;   There are 
30 reports that have been customized.  Thirteen are HR reports; three are benefit 
reports; five are HR reports.  

 
 

46. Did Metro work with a vendor/partner on the prior upgrades to HCM 8.9 and FMS 9.0? If so, 
what firm? 
 

Metro did not work with a vendor for the prior upgrade. 
 

47. What PeopleTools technology is currently being used (application engine, component 
interface, integration broker, sqr)? 
 

Metro uses SQR’s, integration broker, application engines, component interfaces 
and cobols. 

 
48. What release of PeopleTools does Metro intend to consider as part of this analysis? Release 

8.51? 
 

8.50.12 
 

49. What is the number of ERP environments in use today (Demo, Dev, Test, Prod)?   
 

Our environments consist of 8.9 Demo, Test & Prod.  Version 9.1 environment is 
Demo. 

 
50. How many PeopleSoft users and where are they physically located?  

 
PeopleSoft HRMS users that can use the Self Service are 1455.   

 
51. Resources - Are functional and technical resources available to support the project full time?  If 

not, what is the percent availability per resource? What is the length of time these resource 
have been working with PeopleSoft?   

 
 Technical team is available full time to work with the project.  They have been 
working with PeopleSoft for 12+ years.  On the functional team the HR lead has 
been working on PeopleSoft since the beginning of PeopleSoft at Metro.  The 
Payroll lead has worked on PeopleSoft since version 6.0.  The benefits lead has 
been working on PeopleSoft for 6 months. 
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52.  Timeline - When will responses to questions be received? 
 
Response questions/answers will be out October 26, 2010. 
 

53. Due to the tight timeframe, is it possible to have the proposal date extended to allow for a full 
week to address the impact of any additional details provided within the responses to 
questions? 

 
Metro is unable to extend the deadline. 
 

54. When would the RFP be awarded? 
 
The RFP will be awarded 11/5/2010 
 

55. When would the analysis project start?  Are there any timeline considerations that we need to 
be aware of? 
 

See answer to number six. 
 

56.  When is the upgrade intended to start? 
 
See answer to number six. 
 

57. Section VII, B, states “Describe how the work will be done within the given timeframe and 
budget.” What details can Metro share on the expected timeframe and budget for the analysis 
project?   

 
    See answer to number six and number two. 

 
58.  Would all work be on site or is Metro open to off-site/offshore work? 

 
     All work would be completed onsite.  

 
59.  Methodology - Does Metro have a standard methodology in use (i.e. project management, 

change control)?  If yes, please describe. If not, does Metro want the vendor to use their 
project methodology, templates and processes? 
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Metro has a standard methodology in use for all change control and change 
requests by functional leads.  Requests come in via change control document.  
Changes are put into place by technical SME to a test database and then given 
back to the functional lead for full testing.  Once fully tested the change is then 
migrated to production database.  

 
 
 
All other terms, conditions, and requirements of the RFP remain in full force. 

 

Issued October 26, 2010 

Amy Padilla, Metro Project Manager  
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